
   
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 
 
 

 

16 March 2022 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) on 
Thursday, 24th March, 2022 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room Municipal Buildings West Street Boston 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Paul Goodale 
Vice Chairman: Stephen Woodliffe 
 Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Katie Chalmers, Anton Dani, 

Anne Dorrian, Viven Edge, Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, 
Paul Goodale, Neill Hastie, Martin Howard, Brian Rush, 
Yvonne Stevens and Stephen Woodliffe 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 

 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

C   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 

 To report progress on outstanding actions from the minutes of the last meeting, for 
information only. 
 

D   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

E   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 21st March 2022 
 

F   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME  
 

 To allow members of the public to address the Committee. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REVIEW                                        (Pages 7 - 24) 
 

 A report by the Democratic Services Development Manager 
 

2   CENTRAL PARK SECURITY MEASURES UPDATE                  (Pages 25 - 34) 
 

 A report by the Anti Sociall Behaviour Officer 
 

3   BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME AND BTAC EMPOWERING HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES GRANT SCHEME                                             (Pages 35 - 40) 
 

 A  report by the Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC Grant 
Administrator 
 

4   WORK PROGRAMME - including ANNUAL REPORT             (Pages 41 - 74) 
 

 (The Committee’s work programme for the current year for discussion and/or 
updating.) 
 

 

Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314226  email: 
karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 

This meeting will  be streamed live 
 



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

3 February 2022 

Present: Councillor Paul Goodale (Chairman), Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Katie Chalmers, Anne Dorrian, Martin Griggs, 
Brian Rush and Yvonne Stevens 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Support Services & Partnership, Assistant Director - Finance 
(Deputy S151 Officer) and Democratic Services Officer 
 
 
24   APOLOGIES 

 

Apologies for absence were tabled by Councillors Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Viven Edge, 
and Neil Hastie.   
 
25   MINUTES 

 

Committee agreed the minutes of the previous meeting held on 7th October 2021. 
 
26   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 

No updates were tabled 
 
27   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 

None tabled 
 
28   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 

None tabled 
 
29   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME 

 

No public speakers 
 
30   LINCOLNSHIRE HOUSING PARTNERSHIP 

 
The Chairman welcomed the representatives from Lincolnshire Housing Partnership, Mr 
Anthony Read Chairman, Mr Murray MacDonald Chief Executive and Mr Mark Coupland 
Corporate Head for Customer Service to the meeting and thanked them agreeing to 
attend. 
 
Mr Anthony Read addressed the meeting and confirmed he had been in the post since 
September 2019 and that Lincolnshire Housing Partnership were grateful to have the 
opportunity to address the meeting. Referencing a question which sought to identify any 
issues Lincolnshire Housing Partnership were experiencing with the Council, he advised 
on that there were none and the relationship between the two remained very strong.  
Thanking Members for the pre submission of questions, Mr Read stated it was much 
easier to deal with specifics in advance to allow responses at the meeting.  Furthermore, 
Mr Read advised of forthcoming recruitment schemes by Lincolnshire Housing 
Partnership. Confirming the board membership was rotated every six years, with three 
board members retiring, three new board members were currently sought.   

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
3 February 2022 
 

 
Furthermore Lincolnshire Housing Partnership were looking to appoint 2 of their tenants 
to sit on their operations committee, and they were also working with three other 
housing associations across Lincolnshire to provide a facility for training future board 
members.  Committee were asked to encourage any suitable candidates they may know 
to apply. 
 
Mr Murray Macdonald noted that he was delighted at the success of the quadrant 
development and the support the housing association had been able to provide within 
Phase 1 to enable the development to begin.  He advised that since the merger they 
had stayed committed to the comital at the merger with the agreed priorities of 
customers first and not forgetting Boston.  Concerns noted at the time of the merger in 
respect of all monies going to Grimsby had not happened.  The partnership working with 
the Council continued with officers working together on the town deal and on 
homelessness issues with each committed to Boston and its community.   A physical 
office remained in Boston staffed by local residents of the town.   77 new homes had 
been built since the merger with a further 95 homes in either the ground or the pipeline 
to be built.  More than £50million had also been spent since the merger to update and 
improve homes.  
 
Throughout Covid, Lincolnshire Housing Partnership had never had to stop any of its 
services and had maintained its repair service during that time along with its care 
service.  Boston Mayfield which provided extra care services to residents had shielded 
and the site had remained safe.  
 
Moving onto the questions tabled in advance of the meeting and during the meeting 
have been collated and the representatives responses as follows: 
Referencing concern at neglected rural properties: 
The partnership had invested in repairs with a comprehensive programme of works for 
all properties based on the life cycle of the property and equipment therein, which did 
not distinguish between rural and urban dwellings. It was always a tenant’s choice to 
accept repairs to the property and sometimes they did refuse resulting in the home not 
being repaired or updated.  Walkabouts at all sites were vital in identifying potential 
‘missed’ dwellings and the input of residents and members during the walkabouts could 
not be underestimated and was invaluable intelligence gathering. Members were 
encouraged to take part in their areas and a full schedule of walkabouts would be 
provided after the meeting. 
Delays and concerns in respect of answering enquiries and dealing with repairs: 
On average 1000 repairs per month were undertaken in Boston, and occasionally when 
an engineer arrived on site, the initial repair reported was not as it seemed, resulting in 
engineers needing source materials and return to complete the task with 96% of repairs 
being undertaken at the first time visit.  It was always intended to address enquiries for 
repairs within 10 working days but on the odd occasion it could be longer.  In 1920/21 
the Partnership had received 11 complaints from Councillors with only one exceeding 
the timescale.  The switchboard received 150000 calls per year with 50000 being repair 
related. A direct email address for Councillors to submit complaints would be provided 
after the meeting and reassurance was provided that all complaints by Councillors were 
addressed. 
 
 
 

Page 2



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
3 February 2022 

 

 
Tenants with a history of ASB against their neighbours and who regularly swapped 
homes: 
Members were assured that all applications were vetted and checked with agencies but 
they were clearly dependant on evidence having been provided of such activity. The 
partnership worked closely with other agencies and action was taken when evidence 
was available. 
Provision of play areas: 
With no remit to provide play areas within their sites, the Partnership had inherited 
certain play spaces during the merger but the upkeep of those areas was at a cost to the 
tenants.  As tenants move to right to buy the number of rent paying tenants reduced and 
they picked up the outstanding costs.  If there was evidence that tenants required 
additional play areas then consultations would take place, but it was the tenants who 
would decide. 
Responsibility of tenant to maintain property: 
All tenants were responsible to maintain their homes to an acceptable standard with all 
new customers on starter tenancies.  Liaison with other agencies helped to identify 
evidence and enforcement action using a Bailiff through the Courts was taken. 
Energy efficient homes moving forward:   
Boston’s existing housing stock was some of the most energy efficient the Partnership 
held and above the national target with 480 properties below the statutory level of 69.  
Of the remaining stock 60% would reach the requirement by 2030 of Energy Level C 
with the remainder being unable to achieve the level due to their design and 
construction.  One option would be to sell those properties but that would not help the 
required housing stock provision.  A survey of all properties had been collated over the 
years providing a clear picture of each property.  The traditional brick builds did not 
present a problem, but the modern properties built with concrete and flat roofs were an 
issue. Whilst there were solutions, they could potentially be so expensive that re building 
would be the best option. However, consideration would also be given to history of the 
tenants at such properties with recognition of the memories many generations of 
families may be invested within them. 
 
A Member voiced their thanks to the representatives, stating that the service the 
Partnership provided should be celebrated, especially for its speed of response to 
urgent issues.   
 
Concluding the Chairman thanked the representatives for their time and informative 
presentation and extended an open invitation to attend a future meeting to further inform 
and update the committee. 
 
31   BTAC BUDGET 

 
The Assistant Director – Finance presented the report to the committee stating that 
Members of the Committee would be well aware of the context in which the tabled 
budget along with recent budgets had been set, being in times of continuous change 
and significant financial challenge for councils. They had included ongoing reductions in 
grant support from the government, the impact of welfare reform, changes to the 
mechanism upon which central government support is allocated, and the proposed 
future moves for further localisation of the business rates regime.  
 
 

Page 3



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
3 February 2022 
 

BTAC’s support included Footway Lighting, Central Park and open spaces maintenance, 
Public Conveniences and the Community Toilet Scheme; all key areas where the 
reduction in funding as a result of national policy would otherwise have seen the loss or 
severe reduction of some or all of these important services.   In addition, the Committee 
had introduced BTAC Operatives, with a broad remit to maintain the BTAC area and 
improve the appearance of the town, and their efforts are producing tangible changes to 
the town’s look and feel. This is alongside the replacement of 90 litter bins in the town 
area. The Committee had also agreed extra Events funding, to support and enhance the 
range of events and activities for local people.   Over recent years, BTAC had played a 
key role in helping keep the town clean and welcoming for residents, businesses and 
visitors, and introduced initiatives to maintain and provide services that people value 
highly. Without the Committee’s support the Borough Council would have had to make 
decisions that would have proved very difficult.  Going forward, BTAC would play its part 
in deciding how and what future services are delivered in the town given the likely 
resources available to it and the Borough, and this budget will enable the new BTAC 
Committee to consider its priorities for the coming years. 
Following the budget workshop delivered earlier in January, four options to illustrate the 
effects of changes to the assumptions on Council Tax identified the Council Tax 
projections and implications for the Committee’s resources based on feedback from 
members on the preferred scale of future BTAC operations and council tax levels going 
forward. 
 
(a) The proposed increase of 1.35% in 2022/23, then 1% p.a. 
(b) No increase in 2022/23, then 1% p.a. 
(c) An increase of 0.5% in 2022/23, then 1% p.a. 
(d) An increase of 1.0% in 2022/23, then 1% p.a. 
 
The proposed budget requirement for 2022/23, and demand on Council Tax being: 
Budget Requirement.  2021/22 £716.192.      2022.23 £732.864 
Adjusted Tax Base.  2021/22 9.505.9      2022/23  9.597.4 
Band D Equivalent (a-b)/c   2021/22 £75.34.     2022/23  £76.35 
 
Committee deliberation followed which included: 
 

Whilst some Members were reluctant to agree any increase in light of the current 
economic situation particularly in respect of predicted increases in gas and electricity 
prices, they did recognise the need to ensure continuity of funding and felt it fiscally 
irresponsible not to agree an increase.  BTAC was committed to provide certain services 
including the recent successful implementation of closing the gates at Central Park, 
which residents had requested, and any change in providing those services would not 
be well received.  BTAC was a committee of the Borough Council and the cap for the 
increase was 1.35% and a Member noted that the majority of properties within the BTAC 
area were within Bands A and B, and as such their increase would be lower than that of 
Band D as per the recommendation.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That BTAC recommends to Cabinet and Council the level of its Special Expense precept 
for 2022/23 at £732,864, and the Council Tax charge of £76.36 at Band D. 
 
 

Page 4



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
3 February 2022 

 

 
 
32   WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM 

 
Members were advised that an additional meeting had been scheduled for the 14th April 
2022 to accommodate outstanding reporting.  
 
Committee agreed to undertake two reviews to report back to the 14th April meeting.    
The first review would be the current grants scheme which would be facilitated by the 
grants working group and supported by its officer.   
The second would be a review of the current Terms of Reference for BTAC and the 
membership was agreed of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Councillors Katie Chalmers 
and Martin Griggs and facilitated by the committee lead officer.  
 
The Assistant Director – Leisure and Culture (Lead Officer for the committee) referenced 
a submission received from Transported to seek committee’s initial agreement for them 
to position a bouy within Central Park to allow an extension to the trails.  Should 
committee agree the initial siting in the park, Transported would progress the project 
with submission of an application for £1000 through the small grants scheme. 
 

Members questioned the proposed site of bouy within the park indicated within the brief 
information provided, and also voiced concern at the application for funding for £1000 
which they felt could be spent more productively for children and, questioned how it 
aligned with any educational values.  Concern also noted spending of such a large 
amount on an item of art in the current economic climate and queried what the public 
would think. 
 
The Chairman reiterated the initial request for committee to agree or not, of the actual 
siting in Central Park.  He stressed that the application for funding would be through the 
formal small grants scheme process and they would make a decision which would come 
to committee for ratification. The Assistant Director – Leisure and Culture confirmed that 
when the application for funding was submitted it would include all alignments to 
educational values.  
 
Resolved: 
The majority of Members agreed the initial request of siting the bouy within Central Park.  
Transported be formerly invited to attend committee and present an overview of their 
activity within the borough, to date and moving forward. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 8.55 pm 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE: 24th MARCH 2022 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW – INFORMAL PUBLIC 

CONSULTATION 

KEY DECISION: NO 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR NIGEL WELTON 

REPORT AUTHOR: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES DELIVERY MANAGER 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL WARDS 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) has requested the Council to consider conducting a 

Community Governance Review (CGR) of the town area of the Borough under Part 4 of the Local 

Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, with a view to establishing a Town 

Council within the area of the town wards. This was subsequently considered by the Corporate 

and Community Committee on 17 August 2021, when a recommendation was put forward to 

extend a CGR to the whole of the Borough area.  At the meeting of the Cabinet held on 20 

October it was agreed to refer the matter back to BTAC, proposing that an informal public 

consultation process be undertaken prior to the request for a CGR being re-considered by 

Cabinet.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the Committee considers the proposals set out in the report at Section 5 and 

identifies a preferred option. 

2. If the preferred option is for informal consultation to be undertaken within the town 

area, the Parish Councils be contacted prior to the consultation being commenced to 

ascertain if there are any other CGR issues within the parished areas of the Borough 

which could be incorporated into the consultation exercise.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



3. That the wording of any informal consultation exercise be determined by the Assistant 

Director – Governance, in consultation with the Chairman of the Boston Town Area 

Committee and the Portfolio Holder for Democratic Services. 

3. That the decisions of BTAC be reported to the Cabinet for information.  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To ascertain views on the proposal for an informal public consultation exercise to be undertaken 

on the conduct of a community governance review, to assess public interest and appetite prior 

to resources being committed to a formal review process. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

As set out in the report. 

 

REPORT 

 

1. Background 

1.1 At the meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee held on 7 October 2020 consideration 

was given to a proposal to request a Community Governance Review (CGR) be carried out 

for the town wards of the Borough area with a view to creating a Boston Town Council to 

operate in the same way as a parish council.   

1.2 The BTAC meeting was attended by Katrina Evans, Chief Executive of the Lincolnshire 

Association of Local Councils, and Justin Griggs of the National Association of Local Councils, 

who provided members with background details of the requirements of a CGR and 

experiences of where other authorities had carried out similar reviews.  

1.3 The potential for local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire has been a factor in the 

request from BTAC as a means of protecting the town’s identity and history for future 

generations. 

1.4 Cabinet considered the request from BTAC at its meeting held on 12 May 2021.  Following 

thorough debate it was agreed to refer the matter to the Corporate and Community 

Committee to enable scrutiny of the proposal prior to formal consideration and final 

decision by Full Council. 

1.5 At the meeting of the Corporate and Community Committee held on 17 August 2021, after 

wide ranging debate on the potential area for review, it was recommended to Cabinet that 

a borough-wide community governance review should be considered and referred back to 

the Boston Town Area Committee, if necessary, to request the Committee’s views.  A copy 

of the report and minutes are attached at Appendix A.  

1.6 During debate at the meeting of the Corporate and Community Committee it was 

suggested that, if the informal consultation was to be extended to Borough wide, then the 

parish councils should be contacted in the first instance to ascertain if they felt there were 

any issues in their particular areas which would necessitate consideration of a CGR. 

 Page 8



1.7 If any issues were identified these could then be incorporated into any informal 

consultation exercise to be carried out. 

1.8 It is not within BTAC’s remit or gift to instigate a CGR for the parished areas of the Borough.  

1.9 Cabinet considered the recommendation from the Corporate and Community Committee at 

its meeting on 20 October and decided that it be recommended to BTAC that an informal 

public consultation exercise on the option of conducting a Borough wide community 

governance review should be undertaken to assess public appetite and interest in the 

proposal prior to committing further resources.  A copy of the minutes of the Cabinet 

meeting are attached at Appendix B.  

2. Informal Consultation Process 

2.1 The method for an informal consultation process would be to publish a simple survey on-

line, with yes / no options, for a period of 4 weeks.  Hard copy forms would also be 

available from the Council offices. 

2.2 The responses from the informal consultation would be considered by the appropriate 

forums and recommendations made on whether or not to formally request a CGR.  If the 

preference was for a CGR to be triggered the final decision would rest with Full Council. 

3. Community Governance Review Process 

3.1 A Community Governance Review is a review of the whole or part of a district to consider 

one or more of the following: 

 Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes; 

 The naming of parishes and the style (i.e. whether to call it a town council or village 

council etc.) of new parishes; 

 The electoral arrangements for parishes – the ordinary year of election, the size of 

the council, the number of councillors to be elected and parish warding; 

 Grouping parishes under a common parish council, or de-grouping. 

3.2 Under the legislation the Borough Council must aim to ensure that community governance 

in the area under review:- 

 Reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area; 

 Is effective and convenient; 

 Brings about improved community engagement; 

 Better local democracy; 

 Results in more effective and convenient delivery of local services. 

3.3 When considering this, the Council should take into account a number of factors, including: 

 The impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion; and 

 The size, population and boundaries of any new local community or parish. 

3.4 A Community Governance Review involves the following stages:- 

(i) Setting a terms of reference of the review 

 

 

Page 9



(ii) Publishing the terms of reference (for the purposes of the Act, the review formally 

commences when the terms of reference are published); 

(iii) Undertaking consultations with the local government electors for the area and any 

other person or body who appear to have an interest in the review (3 months); 

(iv) Considering representations; 

(v) Preparing and publishing the draft proposals; 

(vi) Undertaking consultations on the draft proposals (3 months); 

(vii) Considering representations; 

(viii) Publishing recommendations; 

(ix) Final recommendations considered by Full Council; 

(x) Making an order to bring into effect any decisions arising from the review; 

(xi) A review must be concluded within 12 months of the publication of the terms of 

reference. 

3.5 When undertaking a CGR a principal council must have regard to the guidance issued by the 

Secretary of State and the Electoral Commission.  However, subject to this, it is for the 

Council to decide how to undertake the review.   

4. Creation of Town Councils Following Local Government Re-organisation 

4.1 An alternative process to standalone CGR, is for Town Councils to be created following local 

government reorganisation of an electoral area or combined electoral areas. 

4.2 Examples of this include Cornwall, Cheshire and most recently Northamptonshire in 

2019/20.   

4.3 The review of Northamptonshire created two unitary authorities to replace the County 

Council and the all the district councils in the county area.  The previous Borough Councils 

for Corby, Kettering, Northampton, and Wellingborough were replaced by Town Councils.  

4.4  It may be possible to source information and experiences from these newly formed Town 

Councils on the process for creating a town council, if this was the outcome of the CGR 

process. 

5.  Options 

5.1 The options available for consideration include:-  

a) Recommend that an informal consultation exercise be undertaken on the proposal 

for a Community Governance Review for the town centre area; 

b) Recommend that prior to an informal consultation exercise be undertaken on the 

proposal for a Community Governance Review for the town centre area, Parish 

Councils be contacted to inform them of the proposed consultation and asked to 

consider if there were any issues within their particular parishes which they felt 

would necessitate a CGR and any issues identified be incorporated into the informal 

consultation exercise; 

 
Page 10



 

 c) Recommend that a Community Governance Review is not undertaken at this time. 

d) Recommend that a Community Governance Review be re-considered when the 

direction of local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire is known. 

6. Conclusion 

6.1 The purpose of a community governance review is to secure an arrangement which will 

bring about improved community engagement, better local democracy and will result in 

more effective and convenient delivery of local services.  

6.2 It must take account of the identities and interests of the community in that area and those 
arrangements for community representation and engagement already in place. 

6.3 Members are asked to consider undertaking an informal public consultation on this 
proposal to canvass views prior to any financial and physical resources being committed to 
a formal review process. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost of undertaking an informal consultation process would be minimal and could be 
accommodated within current budgets. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Section 81 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 provides that it 

is for the Council to decide the terms of reference of any community governance review. 

The legal requirements for recommendations arising from a community governance review are 

set out in Part 4 Chapter 3 of the 2007 Act. This includes recommendations as to what new 

parish or parishes (if any) should be constituted in the area under review, and its electoral 

arrangements.  There must be recommendations as to the name of any new parish, and as to 

whether or not the new parish should have a parish council and how it is styled (e.g. parish, 

town or village). 

The Council must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under s100 of the 

2007 Act about carrying out community reviews and giving effect to any recommendations 

arising out of the review.  The Council must also have regard to guidance from the Electoral 

Commission on electoral recommendations arising out of the review.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

 

Page 11



OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None. 

 

CONSULTATION 

Monitoring Officer 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Report and minutes of the Corporate and Community 

Committee – 17 August 2021 

APPENDIX B Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet – 20 October 2021 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Local Government and Public 

Involvement in Health Act 2007 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

BTAC 7 October 2020 

Cabinet 12 May 2021 

Corporate & Community Committee 17 August 2021 

Cabinet 20 October 2021 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Lorraine Bush 

Signed off by: Mark Stinson 

Approved for publication: N/A 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY – CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY 

COMMITTEE 

DATE: 17th AUGUST 2021 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW 

KEY DECISION: YES 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR NIGEL WELTON 

REPORT AUTHOR: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES DELIVERY MANAGER 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL TOWN WARDS 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) has requested the Council to consider conducting a 

Community Governance Review of the town wards of the Borough area under section 80 of the 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  The details of the request from 

BTAC are set out in Appendix A. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Corporate and Community consider the information and options contained in the 

report and make a recommendation to Cabinet on whether a Community Governance Review 

should be undertaken. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To provide Cabinet with views on the proposal for a community governance review.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

To not comment. 

 

Page 13



REPORT 

 
1. Background 

1.1 At the meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee held on 7 October 2020 consideration 

was given to a proposal to request a Community Governance Review (CGR) be carried out 

for the town wards of the Borough area with a view to creating a Boston Town Council to 

operate in the same way as a parish council.  A copy of the report and minutes of the 

meeting are attached for information at Appendix 1. 

1.2 The BTAC meeting was attended by Katrina Evans, Chief Executive of the Lincolnshire 

Association of Local Councils, and Justin Griggs of the National Association of Local Councils, 

who provided members with background details of the requirements of a CGR and 

experiences of where other authorities had carried out similar reviews.  

1.3 The potential for local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire has been a factor in the 

request from BTAC as a means of protecting the town’s identity and history for future 

generations. 

1.4 Cabinet considered the request from BTAC at its meeting held on 12 May 2021.  Following 

thorough debate it was agreed to refer the matter to the Corporate and Community 

Committee to enable scrutiny of the proposal prior to formal consideration and final 

decision by Full Council. 

2. Community Governance Review Process 

2.1 A Community Governance Review is a review of the whole or part of a district to consider 

one or more of the following: 

 Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes; 

 The naming of parishes and the style (i.e. whether to call it a town council or village 

council etc.) of new parishes; 

 The electoral arrangements for parishes – the ordinary year of election, the size of 

the council, the number of councillors to be elected and parish warding; 

 Grouping parishes under a common parish council, or de-grouping. 

2.2 Under the legislation the Borough Council must aim to ensure that community governance 

in the area under review:- 

 Reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area; 

 Is effective and convenient; 

 Brings about improved community engagement; 

 Better local democracy; 

 Results in more effective and convenient delivery of local services. 

2.3 When considering this, the Council should take into account a number of factors, including: 

 The impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion; and 

 The size, population and boundaries of any new local community or parish. 

  

Page 14



2.4 A Community Governance Review involves the following stages:- 

(i) Setting a terms of reference of the review 

(ii) Publishing the terms of reference (for the purposes of the Act, the review formally 

commences when the terms of reference are published); 

(iii) Undertaking consultations with the local government electors for the area and any 

other person or body who appear to have an interest in the review (3 months); 

(iv) Considering representations; 

(v) Preparing and publishing the draft proposals; 

(vi) Undertaking consultations on the draft proposals (3 months); 

(vii) Considering representations; 

(viii) Publishing recommendations; 

(ix) Final recommendations considered by Full Council; 

(x) Making an order to bring into effect any decisions arising from the review; 

(xi) A review must be concluded within 12 months of the publication of the terms of 

reference. 

2.5 When undertaking a CGR a principal council must have regard to the guidance issued by the 

Secretary of State and the Electoral Commission.  However, subject to this, it is for the 

Council to decide how to undertake the review.   

3. Considerations 

In considering whether a Community Governance Review should be triggered for the Boston town 
area, there are a number of matters that should to be taken into account, which have a direct 
strategic, financial and operational impact on the Borough Council as set out in the table below: 
  

Considerations Impact 

The overheads of a Town Council would be 
substantially higher than those currently 
incurred by BTAC.  As an example, a Town 
Clerk’s starting salary could be in the region of 
£55k and it’s assumed a wider team of 
administrative staff would be required (Deputy 
Town Clerk; Office Administrator, plus those 
directly delivering services); as well as the 
costs associated with other operational 
considerations, such as professional advisors 
(HR/finance/ICT), premises and four-yearly 
elections. 
 

This would likely result in a significant increase 
in Council Tax for the community to maintain 
services at the same level as those currently 
funded by the BTAC levy.  

The estimated cost of the CGR is in the region 
of £10,000. 

If the CGR took place as part of a wider review 
of local government in Lincolnshire, it would 
likely be at no cost to the Borough Council. 
 

Page 15



Where the Town Council would be based. An early practical consideration is where a Town 
Council would be based.  There appear two 
options 1) rent or buy its own premises; 2) take 
office space within the Municipal Buildings (if 
available). 
 

Community Governance Order If the outcome of the CGR was to create a 
Boston Town Council, legal support and 
expertise would be required to draft a 
Community Governance Order. 
 

Transitional Arrangements The creation of a Town Council requires a series 
of general principles to be agreed with the 
Borough Council as part of the transfer of 
responsibilities including:- 

 To be established in a safe and legal 
manner; 

 Vesting day; 

 Transfer of assets, liabilities and 
responsibilities either limited to what is 
required by legislation or wider services; 

 Introduction of a precept to ensure there 
is adequate financial resources for the 
Town Council to operate in an efficient 
and effective manner;  

 Ward boundaries and number of 
Councillors to be elected; 

 Recruitment process for the 
employment of appropriate staff; 

 Develop draft documents, policies and 
procedures; 

 Payroll, banking and financial systems in 
place to enable the new Council to 
operate effectively; 

 Arrangements for appropriate officer 
support for the new Town Council prior 
to recruitment to permanent posts.  

 

 

4. Creation of Town Councils Following Local Government Re-organisation 

4.1 An alternative process to standalone CGR, is for Town Councils to be created following local 

government reorganisation of an electoral area or combined electoral areas. 

4.2 Examples of this include Cornwall, Cheshire and most recently Northamptonshire in 

2019/20.   

4.3 The review of Northamptonshire created two unitary authorities to replace the County 

Council and the all the district councils in the county area.  The previous Borough Councils 

for Corby, Kettering, Northampton, and Wellingborough were replaced by Town Councils.  

Page 16



4.4  It may be possible to source information and experiences from these newly formed Town 

Councils on the process for creating a town council, if this was the outcome of the CGR 

process. 

5.  Options 

5.1 The options available for consideration are:-  

a) Recommend that a Community Governance Review for the town centre wards be 

triggered; 

 b) Recommend that a Community Governance Review is not undertaken at this time. 

c) Recommend that a Community Governance Review be re-considered when the 

direction of local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire is known. 

6. Next Steps 

6.1 If Full Council was to agree to trigger a Community Governance Review for the Boston Town 

Wards outside of any future local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire, the 

expectation would be for it to commence in October/November 2021 for completion within 

a year.  As there are no elections scheduled for 2022 this would provide the time necessary 

to concentrate on the CGR process. 

6.2 The first step in the CGR process would be to convene a cross party working group of 

Members and appropriate officers  to agree a terms of reference giving consideration to 

the current arrangements, including wards, number of members and ratio of electors.  

Guidance sets out that “the terms of reference should be appropriate to local people and 

their circumstances and reflect the specific needs of their communities.”  The working 

group would also consider the method of consultation with the public and stakeholders and 

agree a communications and consultation plan. 

6.3 The working group may also consider requesting assistance from external organisations 

with experience and expertise in the conduct of CGRs e.g. National Association of Local 

Councils, other local authorities who have conducted similar reviews. 

 

7. Conclusion 

7.1 The purpose of a community governance review is to secure an arrangement which will 

bring about improved community engagement, better local democracy and will result in 

more effective and convenient delivery of local services.  

7.2 It must take account of the identities and interests of the community in that area and those 
arrangements for community representation and engagement already in place. 

7.3 Members are asked to consider if this would be achieved by conducting a CGR of the 
Boston Town wards or whether the current governance arrangements of the town wards 
being an unparished area with the Boston Town Area Committee raising a precept for a 
special area expense account to deliver specific services, is effective and the preferred 
method. 

 

 Page 17



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost of undertaking a Community Governance Review is estimated at £10,000 based on 
similar reviews carried out by other authorities. There is no existing budget provision for the 
review. 
 
If the outcome of a review was in favour of creating a Boston Town Council there would be 
financial implications arising from the decision including the setting of a parish precept for the 
new council, impacts on the special area expenses precept currently raised by BTAC, staff and 
accommodation costs for the new council, transfer of assets etc. 
 
A new Town Council would likely require a level of financial support from the Borough Council 
to enable its formation. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Section 81 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 provides that it 

is for the Council to decide the terms of reference of any community governance review. 

The legal requirements for recommendations arising from a community governance review are 

set out in Part 4 Chapter 3 of the 2007 Act. This includes recommendations as to what new 

parish or parishes (if any) should be constituted in the area under review, and its electoral 

arrangements.  There must be recommendations as to the name of any new parish, and as to 

whether or not the new parish should have a parish council and how it is styled (e.g. parish, 

town or village). 

The Council must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under s100 of the 

2007 Act about carrying out community reviews and giving effect to any recommendations 

arising out of the review.  The Council must also have regard to guidance from the Electoral 

Commission on electoral recommendations arising out of the review.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None. 

 

CONSULTATION 

Boston Town Area Committee 

Page 18



 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A BTAC report and minutes 

APPENDIX B Guidance on the conduct of Community Governance 

Reviews 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Local Government and Public 

Involvement in Health Act 2007 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2007/28/contents 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

BTAC 7 October 2020 

Cabinet 12 May 2021 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Lorraine Bush 

Signed off by: James Gilbert – Interim Deputy Chief Executive 

(People) 

Approved for publication: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE.    17 AUGUST 2021 
 
Minute: 
  
16  
 

 
COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW  
 

The Democratic Services Delivery Manager presented a report, which set out information 
relating to the possibility of conducting a Community Governance Review (CGR). 
 
The Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) had issued a request that the Council 
considered conducting a Community Governance Review of the town wards of the borough 
area under section 80 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 
The details of the request from BTAC were set out in Appendix A.  
The Committee was asked to consider the information and options contained in the report 
and make a recommendation to Cabinet on whether a CGR should be undertaken. 
  
The purpose of a CGR was to secure an arrangement that would bring about improved 
community engagement, better local democracy and result in more effective and 
convenient delivery of local services 
. 
The CGR had to take account of the identities and interests of the community in that area 
and those arrangements for community representation and engagement already in place.  
 
Members were asked to consider if this would be achieved by conducting a CGR of the 
Boston Town wards or whether the current governance arrangements of the town wards – 
being an unparished area with BTAC raising a precept for a special area expense account 
to deliver specific services – was effective and the preferred method.  
 
The report set out the issues considered by BTAC, which led to the Committee’s decision 
to request that a CGR be carried out for the town wards of the borough area with a view to 
creating a Boston Town Council to operate in the same way as a parish council. A copy of 
the report and minutes of the meeting were attached to the report for information at 
Appendix 1. 
  
Cabinet’s consideration of the request had concluded that the views of Scrutiny Members 
be sought before making a recommendation to Full Council. 
  
The report outlined the CGR process and the guidance a principal council had to have 
regard to, issued by the Secretary of State and the Electoral Commission, was attached to 
the report at Appendix B. It also set out a number of matters that should be taken into 
account that would have a direct strategic, financial and operational impact on the Borough 
Council.  
 
There was an alternative process to a standalone CGR, which would be for Town Councils 
to be created following local government reorganisation of an electoral area or combined 
electoral areas. 
  
If Full Council was to agree to trigger a Community Governance Review for the Boston 
Town wards outside of any future local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire, the 
expectation would be for it to commence in October/November 2021 for completion within 
a year. As there were no elections scheduled for 2022 this would provide the time 
necessary to concentrate on the CGR process.  

Page 20



 
The first step in the CGR process would be to convene a cross-party working group of 
Members and appropriate officers to agree terms of reference, considering the current 
arrangements, including wards, number of members and ratio of electors. Guidance set out 
that “the terms of reference should be appropriate to local people and their circumstances 
and reflect the specific needs of their communities.” The working group would also 
consider the method of consultation with the public and stakeholders and agree a 
communications and consultation plan.  
 
The working group might also consider requesting assistance from external organisations 
with experience and expertise in the conduct of CGRs, e.g. the National Association of 
Local Councils and other local authorities who had conducted similar reviews. 
 
The options available for consideration were to:  
a) Recommend that a Community Governance Review for the town centre wards be 
triggered;  
b) Recommend that a Community Governance Review not be undertaken at this time; 
c) Recommend that a Community Governance Review be re-considered when the direction 
of local government reorganisation for Lincolnshire was known. 
 
The Chairman invited the Deputy Leader, as Portfolio Holder, to address the Committee 
regarding a suggestion made at a Member Briefing on the topic, that the CGR could cover 
the whole borough area to include the parish councils. The Deputy Leader pointed out that 
this would have much higher cost implications and would require external assistance as 
there was insufficient internal resources available to conduct such a wide-ranging review.  
 
Members’ comments included:  

 The need to protect the borough’s precious heritage assets, such as the Regalia 
and the Guildhall and consider the loss of borough status  

 The interests of a section of Wyberton residents who, following the last ward 
boundary review, paid the BTAC precept, but were not represented by BTAC or by a 
parish council  

 Parish councils should be asked their views  

 Concern about the cost of a Town Council, how it would be run and how it would 
affect the role of the Mayor  

8 

 The need to raise public awareness of the area’s governance arrangements, but 
recognition of a level of apathy  

 
Members’ comments included:  
 

 The need to protect the borough’s precious heritage assets, such as the Regalia 
and the Guildhall and consider the loss of borough status  

 The interests of a section of Wyberton residents who, following the last ward 
boundary review, paid the BTAC precept, but were not represented by BTAC or by a 
parish council  

 Parish councils should be asked their views  

 Concern about the cost of a Town Council, how it would be run and how it would 
affect the role of the Mayor  

 The need to raise public awareness of the area’s governance arrangements, but 
recognition of a level of apathy  

 

Page 21



The Democratic Services Delivery Manager advised the Committee that the borough ward 
boundaries could not be changed by a CGR and that parish councils would have to be 
consulted before including them in a CGR.  
 
The BTAC Chairman referred to the greater responsibilities that BTAC had taken on in 
recent years, such as maintenance of public conveniences and the running of events, 
including the Christmas Market, yet the Council had the power to direct how BTAC spent 
its money, which was not acceptable. A borough-wide review should be undertaken in 
order to include the parishes, as parish councils would be affected by this and any future 
Local Government Review (LGR). The report did not indicate what it cost BTAC currently to 
run its services and could not identify what a Town Council would pay or what services it 
would take on from the Council.  
 
The BTAC Chairman advised the Committee that he would be happy to go back to BTAC 
to ask if its Members would be prepared to wait until the parish councils were consulted to 
find out if they wanted a borough-wide review.  
 
Invited to comment by the Chairman, the Portfolio Holder for Finance expressed a 
preference for the option to re-consider a CGR when the direction of local government 
reorganisation for Lincolnshire was known. There was no evidence that creation of a Town 
Council would achieve the aims of a CGR or that local democracy needed to be improved. 
The estimated costs for a CGR were £10,000 aside from officer time and then there would 
be the cost of running a Town Council. In addition, if LGR took place, a Town Council 
would be established in any case.  
 
The Deputy Leader pointed out that a budget had not been identified for a borough-wide 
CGR and suggested that the Council should go ahead with a town ward review, as 
recommended by BTAC, so that the process was not delayed. 
 
The BTAC Chairman pointed out that BTAC currently paid significant recharges to the 
Council for its services. Costs did increase in relation to localised democracy. However, he 
considered that most of Members’ questions and concerns could only be addressed by 
carrying out a CGR.  
 
The time was right to the review to be borough-wide so that parishes could be included and 
the Council had money in reserves in order to fund it.  
 
The Committee then unanimously: 
 
RESOLVED to recommend that Cabinet considers a borough-wide community 
governance review (CGR) and refers back to the Boston Town Area Committee, if 
necessary, to request the Committee’s views. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



CABINET MEETING 20 OCTOBER 2021 

 

27  RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
(STANDING ITEM)* 
 

 

DECISION 

 

That consideration of a borough-wide community governance review 

(CGR) be referred back to the Boston Town Area Committee to take into 

account the views of the Corporate & Community Committee and carry out 

consultation to gauge public appetite for a review. 

Portfolio 

Holders 

and 

Officer 

 

NW/LB 

 

 
 

REASON FOR DECISION  

 
The Deputy Leader introduced a recommendation from the Corporate & Community 
Committee’s meeting of 17th August 2021, when the Committee had considered a report that 
set out information and options relating to the possibility of conducting a Community 
Governance Review (CGR). 
 
The Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) had issued a request that the Council 
considered conducting a CGR of the town wards of the borough area under section 80 of 
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  The Committee was 
asked to make a recommendation to Cabinet on whether a CGR should be undertaken. 
 
Following its consideration, the Committee resolved to ask Cabinet to consider the following 
recommendation: 
 

“That Cabinet considers a borough-wide community governance review (CGR) and refers 
back to the Boston Town Area Committee, if necessary, to request the Committee’s views.” 
 

The Deputy Leader suggested that the matter could be referred back to BTAC for the 

Committee to consider carrying out a consultation to gauge public appetite for a CGR 

because of the significant costs involved. 

 

The Chief Executive reported that other areas that recently gone through the CGR process 
had been looked at and it had been noticed that they had taken the route described by the 
Deputy Leader, which he considered a sensible option. 
 
In response to concerns raised, the Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that the final decision 
would not be made by BTAC itself; it would be a decision for Full Council.   
 
The Deputy Leader then put this forward as a proposal and when put to the vote it was 
carried with one vote against. 
 

11 

Page 23



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is blank 

Page 24



 

 
 

REPORT TO: Boston Town Area Committee 

DATE: Thursday 24th March 2022 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Central Park Security Measures Update 

To provide an update on two new security measures recently set 

up for Central Park, which includes a comparison of Police Incidents 

before the measures commenced and then again afterwards. 

KEY DECISION: No 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Tracey Abbott 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Ian Dunn 

Ian Dunn 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: BTAC 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report is to provide members with an update on the two new security measures recently 

commenced for Central Park. 

Security measure 1 is the locking of Central Park during the hours of darkness (timings agreed by 

members at the August meeting this year) and of which commenced on the 6th September 2021. 

Security measure 2 is the additional CCTV operator to monitor BTAC assets including Central 

Park, other green open spaces and assets within the market place.  

The report provides an overview of statistics, incidents and impacts of both security measures, 

in relation to security measure 1 police and anti-social behaviour incidents two months before 

the commencement date compared to the four months since the commenced date and in 

relation to security measure 2 a report from the council’s CCTV Manager highlighting logged 

incidents by CCTV operators in Central Park and the work of the BTAC funded CCTV Operator.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That members review, comment, and challenge the information presented within the report 

and its appendices.  

 

 

 
Page 25

Agenda Item 2



 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To enable members to review, comment, and challenge the information presented. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1. As of 6th September 2021 it was agreed by members that it would fund the closure of 
Central Park during the periods of darkness for an initial 1 year period.  

 
1.2. During the period of this report Central Park has been locked between 2000hours and 

0530hours each day.  
 
1.3. Central Park was to remain locked overnight in a bid to reduce crime, nuisance and anti-

social behaviour. 
 

1.4. Locking timings are to change over the course of the year with the changing of seasons: 
 

Autumn – 0530hours to 2000hours – 6th September 2021 to 20th December 2021 

Winter – 0530hours to 1800hours – 21st December 2021 to 20th March 2022 

Spring – 0530hours to 2000hours – 21st March 2022 to 21st June 2022 

Summer – 0530hours to 2200hours – 22nd June 2022 to 5th September 2022 

1.5. During the first 14 days of locking Central Park the private security company employed to 

conduct this service was supported by the Neighbourhood Police Team (NPT).  

 

1.6. NPT supported the security team to aid with educating locals and clearing the park before 

locking. 

 

1.7. On the first evening, NPT and the security staff were also supported by Boston Borough 

Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) Officer, who was based in CCTV. 

 

1.8. On the second evening of the new locking of Central Park contract, Boston Borough 

Council’s ASB Officer and Inspector Harrod of NPT worked together to support the 

security team in clearing the park before it was locked. 

 

1.9. It was noted on this evening how helpful and respectful members of the public were 

when asked to leave the park and that the park was clear and locked within 15/20 

minutes of arrival. 

 

 
Page 26



 

1.10. There were no reported issues during the first 2 weeks of the new locking of the park 

procedure.  

 
 

2. STATISTICS 

 
2.1. 6th July 2021 – 6th September 2021.  

 
Total calls to Police  - 33 
 
‘Daytime’ calls (05:30 – 20:00 hours) – 27 
 
Within future closure hours (20:00 – 05:30 hours) – 6 
 

 
2.2. Of the 6 incidents after 8pm: 
 

1 x ASB, noise nuisance. 

1 x call by Fire for deliberate ignition, crimed  as Arson (to a container) 

1 x criminal damage to doctor’s surgery (called in by Fire dealing with above). Male threw 

stone and smashed window. 

1 x male extremely drunk believed lost in the area. 

2 x common assaults, both by youths on other youths, both offenders well known to Police, 

both crimed. One victim refused to make any allegations, one was dealt for breach of civil 

injunction. 

 
 

2.3. 6th September 2021 to 3rd November 2021. 
 

Total calls to Police – 11 

‘Daytime’ calls (05:30 20:00 hours) – 9 

Within closure hours (20:00 – 05:30 hours) – 2 

 

2.4. Of those 2 incidents within the locked times: 

 

21/9/21 @ 21:52hrs - caller (member of the public) rang FCR (Force Control Room) stating 

that there were 3 youths climbing the fence. CCTV were made aware to monitor the area, 

nothing seen. 

 

23/9/21 @ 20:28hrs - Male in park refusing to leave (called in by security). Police attended 

and the male was arrested for theft, which had taken place in a retail premises earlier. 

 

 

Page 27



 

 

2.5. 4th November 2021 – 3rd January 2022 

 

Total calls to Police –  7 

‘Daytime’ calls (05:30 20:00 hours) – 7 

Within closure hours (20:00 Until 20th December – 05:30 hours) – 0 

Within closure hours (18:00 From 21st December – 05:30 hours) – 0 

 

BTAC Area & BTAC CCTV Operator Data Report can to be found at Appendix A of this report. 

 

3. View of ASB Officer and Inspector Harrod 
 

3.1. ASB Officer – Ian Dunn “The number of incidents have continued to decrease since the 

park was initially locked in September. It is pleasing to see this downward trend in calls to the 

Police and even more so in the most recent 2 month period there have been no calls during 

locked hours, this stat all the more impressive given the 6pm locking time from 21st December 

2021.  

These stats are proving that locking the park during the evening is having a positive impact for 

the residents, general members of the public and the local Police teams who are able to use 

their resources in other areas where before September, Central Park occupied a significant 

amount of their time.” 

 

3.2. Inspector Harrod – Boston Police “It is pleasing to see that in the latest reported figures, 

not one single instance of crime or anti-social behaviour has occurred in the park during hours 

of closure, which I’m sure comes as a huge relief for those previously impacted by behaviours 

that lead to the request to relock the gates in the evening.   

In addition, Police have not needed to draw the emergency key in response to any incident, 

but have on occasion done so to proactively patrol the park in the hours of darkness and 

ensure all was well, in addition to combatting anti-social behaviour and damage around 

Centenary Church.   

Whilst one would not necessarily expect many people to be in the park at this time of year had 

it remained open 24/7, experience shows us that bad weather was previously no barrier to the 

nuisance residents were experiencing, so having no reported incidents at all is hugely positive 

for everyone.” 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



 

4. CONCLUSION 

 

4.1. In summary, we have seen a continued decrease in calls to the Police since the locking of 

Central Park. And in this period we have had no calls during locked times which in itself is 

further improvement on the last period when there were 2. 

4.2. It would appear that so far the locking of Central Park in the evenings, has helped in 

decreasing the number of issues previously experienced in the park and certainly the number 

of calls to service. 

4.3. This will be continually monitored and reported to BTAC again in May. 

4.4. Winter closure times have not impacted the number of incidents in any way as they have 

continued to decrease with no incidents called in after locking since September 2021. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

Central Park continues to be a place members of the public can go to enjoy and residents in the 
area feel safe in the knowledge they won’t be disturbed during the evenings. 
 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS 

 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

None 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

None 

 

STAFFING 

None 

 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

DATA PROTECTION 

None 

 

Page 29



 

FINANCIAL 

BTAC are funding the locking of the park and the CCTV Operator for the 12 month period. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

None 

 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

BTAC Members  

Lincolnshire Police  

 

REPUTATION 

Too early to say at this stage, but looking positive if incidents continue to remain low 

 

CONTRACTS 

 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

It is hoped the number of incidents, which have gone down so far, continue to go down or remain 

equally as low. Police then get less calls for incidents in the park.  

 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

None 

 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

ACRONYMS 

ASB – Anti-Social Behaviour Officer 

NPT – Neighbourhood Police Team 

 

 Page 30



APPENDICES 

(If none then insert the word ‘None’ and delete the below text/boxes). 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A BTAC Area & BTAC CCTV Operator Data Report 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

(If none then insert the working ‘No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local 

Government Act 1972 were used in the production of this report.’  Also delete the below 

text/boxes.) 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

No background papers as defined in 

Section 100D of the Local Government 

Act 1972 were used in the production of 

this report 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

(If none then insert the wording ‘A report on this item has not been previously considered by a 

Council body’.  Also delete the below text/boxes.) 

Name of body Date 

N/A  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Ian Dunn – ian.dunn@boston.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Name and full contact details 

Approved for publication: Name of Councillor (if required) 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 31



FINANCE PROFORMA 

PROFORMA FOR APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:   

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:   
REPORT DATE:  
 

OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
      
      
      

Total Revenue Cost      

 
Funding required:   Considered by: Date: 
Total capital cost 
 

£  Enter committee here  

Revenue cost 
 

£  Enter Council or 
Cabinet/Executive here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
 
 
 
Risk 
 
 
 
Procurement 
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 

 

 

 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

 

Page 32



 

Appendix A 

 

Boston Borough Council CCTV 

BTAC Area & BTAC CCTV Operator Data 

After receiving funding from BTAC, CCTV has endeavoured to employ the services of an extra CCTV 

operator with the specific purpose of monitoring areas of BTAC concern.  

The data within this section of the report refers to the period between the 1st of November 2021, and the 

1st January 2022. All CCTV related data is obtained via VTAS; our database software for logging CCTV 

activities. 

In the November – December period, CCTV operators worked 123 hours for the purpose of monitoring 

BTAC areas in CCTV.  

The BTAC CCTV Operator position was vacant during this time, so regular CCTV operators were utilised 

when they were available for extra work. Of the 39 BTAC shifts available for the period of this report, 17 

were covered, and 22 could not be covered.  

Due to this our data is limited, due to the difficulty in separating it from the rest of the CCTV data.  

During the November – December period our CCTV operators also logged 5 incidents using cameras 

covering BTAC concerns.  Brief summary of these is provided below. 

VTAS Number Category Details 

32004 Anti-social Behaviour Youths playing with fire in Central Park 

32185 Anti-social Behaviour Youths throwing stolen xmas baubles 

32016 Drugs Investigating a report of drug smoking in Central Park 

32203 Shoplifting Search for shoplifter in Central Park area 

31950 Theft from Person Search for suspected purse snatch. 

 

Recruitment 

In the last report we highlighted issues with CCTV operator recruitment. As before the BTAC specific role is 

currently vacant, along with 3 other CCTV vacancies. We are recruiting again, due to the withdrawal of 

people that had previously received job offers from us. We continue to progress through the recruitment 

process in the hope of having the control room fully staffed, however it is likely that devoting resources to 

BTAC specific monitoring will be limited until we have appropriate staffing levels. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 33



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: Boston Town Area Committee 

DATE: 24th March 2022 

SUBJECT: BTAC Small Grant Scheme and BTAC Empowering Healthy 

Communities Grant Scheme 

REPORT AUTHOR: Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC 

Grant Administrator 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

In accordance with the Committee’s Small Grant Scheme, this report presents the applications 

made to the Small Grants Working Group in Round 4 of the financial year 2021/2022 for both 

the BTAC Small Grant Scheme and Round 2 of the Empowering Healthy Communities Grant 

Scheme. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the Committee endorse the recommendations made by the Working Group in respect 
of eligible application/s. 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee’s policy is to consider each eligible application in light of the recommendations 

made by the Small Grant Working Group.  

 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None. 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

 

REPORT 

1.1  3 applications were received in Round 4 of the Boston Town Area Committee Small Grant 

Scheme, which were considered eligible for consideration and 2 applications were received 

in Round 2 of the Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Scheme, which were considered 

eligible for consideration. Details of each applicant are set out in Table 1 below.  Working 

Group recommendations to be circulated at full committee as Table 2.  

TABLE 1 

Applicant Scheme Project Amount Requested 

Boston Book 
Festival 

BTAC Small Grant 
Scheme 

To cover the cost of 
hiring Boston 
Guildhall for the 
duration of the 
festival event. 

£1,000.00 

The Wednesday 
Club 

BTAC Small Grant 
Scheme 

To contribute to the 
cost of summer and 
autumn 
events/activities for 
the club. 

£600.00 

St Leonard’s 
Hospital Trust 

BTAC Small Grant 
Scheme 

To cover the cost of 
purchasing a blue 
plaque 
commemorating 820 
years of the 
almshouse provision 
an to hire a marquee 
for the celebration 
event in May 2022. 

£874.24 

Louise and Sarah 
Memorial Fund 

BTAC Empowering 
Healthy 
Communities Grant 
Scheme 

To contribute to the 
cost of building and 
installing further 
memorial benches at 
the site in Lime 
Woods. 

£1,000.00 

BBC Community 
Safety Team – 
Grace’s Bench 

BTAC Empowering 
Healthy 
Communities Grant 

To contribute 
towards the cost of a 
memorial bench to 
be dedicated to 
Grace Brocklesby 
which will also 
provide information 
about local support 
services for young 
people with mental 
health issues who 
may be in distress. 

£1,000.00 

Page 36



 

 

 

CONCLUSION 
 
In conclusion, the Working Group recommendations are to be circulated at full Committee for 
consideration, in line with the Committee’s policy which is to consider each eligible application in 
light of the Small Grant Working Group’s recommendations.   
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The value of each grant sought is set out in Table 1.  The Committee’s current Small Grant and 

Empowering Healthy Communities Grant Scheme financial position is set out in the finance pro-

forma that accompanies this report.  

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

This work relates directly to the Local Government Act 2000 and to the Duty of Well-being 

placed upon the Council to promote and improve the well-being of the District.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no climate change and environmental implications directly arising from this report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Priorities supported will promote fairness and inclusion while supporting Boston Town Area 

Committee’s commitment to equal opportunities for all, including those protected 

characteristics identified within the Equalities Act 2010 

There are no equalities implications within this report.  All equalities implications will be 

managed alongside each individual applicant through the monitoring process of project delivery. 

There are no safeguarding implications directly arising from this report. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

CONSULTATION 

Applications have been reviewed by the Small Grant Working Group with their comments set out 

within Table 2 to be circulated at full committee. 

 

 

Page 37



 

 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

N/A N/A 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Grant Applications Application summaries are available to BTAC Members on request from 

the Small Grant Scheme Administrator. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

BTAC Small Grants Scheme Working 

Group 

24th February 2022 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development 
Officer and Administrator of the Boston Town Area 
Committee Small Grant Scheme 

maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: Emily Spicer – Assistant Director of Well-Being and 

Community leadership 

Emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: Chairman of BTAC 

Councillor Paul Goodale 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 38

mailto:maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk


 

 

FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 
REPORT DATE:  24th March 2022 
 
 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025/26 
Revenue      
 

BTAC Small Grants  

 
2,474.24 

    

Empowering 
Healthy 
Communities Grants  
 

2,000     

Total Revenue Cost 4,474.24     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: 
March 
2022 

Total capital cost 
 

£0    

Revenue cost 
 

£4,474.24  Enter Council or 
Cabinet here 

N/A 

 
Financial Services Comments 
The committee has £5,298 remaining from the BTAC small grants scheme and £19,000 available 
from the Empowering Healthy Communities Scheme.  
 
Risk 
 
None 
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 
 
 

 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
 

 ▪   

 

9 August 2021 
 

▪ Grant Request - Arranging Community Events Group 
▪ Public Conveniences – Costs and Options re Charges/Opening Hours  

• Bulky waste collection – consideration of amnesty 
 

 

Town Centre Services Manager  
Assistant Director – Operations 

“ 

 ▪   

 

7 Oct 2021 
 

▪ Grant Request - Arranging Community Events Group 
▪ Small Grants Scheme  
▪ Open Spaces Improvements ‘Wish List’  
 

 

Ass. Director - Support Service & Partnership  
Local Communities Development Officer 

Operations Manager 

 ▪   

 

17 Nov 2021 
 

 

Meeting cancelled 
 

 

 
 

 ▪   
 

2 Dec 2021 
 

 

Meeting inquorate 
 
 

 

 ▪   

 

3 Feb 2022 
 

 

▪ Representation by Lincolnshire Housing Partnership 
▪ Budget Setting 
▪ Work Programme 

 

 
Section 151 Officer  

Standing Item 
   

 
 

24 Mar 2022 

▪ Corporate Governance Scheme 
▪ Update on locking of Central Park 
▪ Small Grants Scheme 
▪ Work Programme and Annual Report   
 

Democratic Services Delivery Manager 
Anti-Social Behaviour Officer 
Local Communities Officer 

 

 

 

14 Apr 2022 
▪ Representation by LCC Members for the BTAC Wards. 
▪ Update on Public convenience provision in Boston 
▪ MWG.  Review Small Grants Scheme 
▪ MWG.  Terms of Reference 
▪ Financial Statement 
▪ Work Programme  

 

 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 4



 

MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
 

19 May 2022 ▪   

 ▪   

 

   

 
Future reporting:   Invitation to be issued to Transported.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is blank.  

P
age 42



 

 

 

 
 

P
age 43



 
 

Report Contents:  
 
When Audited BTAC received  

 

1. What is BTAC?   

  

2. How does BTAC work? 

 

3. What does BTAC do? 

 

4. BTAC Membership 

 

5. Meetings. 

6. BTAC Small and 

Community Grants 

 

7. Review of the year  

 

8. Main items of Business 

 

9. Public Engagement  

 

 

High 

Assurance 

See Full Audit Report at appendix 1.  

P
age 44



 
 

1. What is BTAC? 
 

BTAC is a Council Committee, which represents the residents that live 

within the town area of Boston.  

These areas are called wards and are not covered by Parish Councils. 

These are Fenside, Witham, Trinity, West, Station, Staniland, Skirbeck 

and St Thomas’ wards.  

 

2. How does BTAC Work? 
 

Residents who live within these wards pay a precept within their Council 

Tax which BTAC use to support initiatives that have a direct benefit and 

positive impact on the residents. The Committee is committed to working 

in partnership with local people to deliver the Council’s overall priorities 

to secure better services for less money and share opportunities and 

responsibilities wherever possible.  

P
age 45



 
 

 

3. What does BTAC do? 
 

BTAC provides and maintains many aspects of the town, including parks, 

open spaces, play areas, town events, public toilets and other facilities 

and services that are mainly intended for the use and benefit of residents 

for the non-parished Boston Town Area. It also monitors and reviews the 

performance of services within its responsibility.  
 

BTAC provides its maintenance through the BTAC Operatives - 

employed to clean the town and maintain its beauty. These are the kind 

of things they have worked on within the year so far: 

  

P
age 46



 
 

4. BTAC Membership 

The Committee is made up from all of the 14 elected Members who represent the town 

wards of Boston, for 2020/21 they are shown below with their wards.  

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councillors                              

Viven Edge and Neill Hastie 

Councillors                          

Deborah Evans and Brian Rush 

Councillor 

Alison Austin  

Councillors                  

Alan Bell and Anton Dani  

 

Councillors                                          

Katie Chalmers, Martin Howard 

and Anne Dorrian   

Councillors                              

Martin Griggs and Yvonne Stevens  

 

Councillor                 

Stephen Woodliffe  

 

Councillor                      

Paul Goodale 

P
age 47



 
 

5. Meetings 
 

BTAC meets on dates agreed at the Council’s annual general meeting in May of each 

year. The Committee can also hold extraordinary meetings. The chairman can call for an 

extraordinary meeting when there is an urgent or high importance item to be discussed. 

 
 

6. BTAC Small and Community Grants 
 

BTAC’s Small Grants Scheme is for individuals and groups wanting to contribute directly 

to their town centre community. The scheme is operated using BTAC’s Small Grants 

Policy, with a scoring matrix based on the requirements of the Committee that it be 

consistent with BTAC’s terms of reference.   

This is easy to understand; flexible and inclusive; and includes a ‘pre-assessment’ 

process for officers so that only those applications scoring above a defined threshold are 

considered by a Working Group of Members to make recommendations back to the 

Committee.  

 

P
age 48



 
 

 

During the year, the Committee considered the recommendations of the BTAC Small 

Grants Working Group and awarded a total of £16,976.67 grants to local community 

groups. The grants are set out in the table below. 

 

£796.67 to Boston Samaritans to 

purchase branded promotional 
material to aid awareness  

£1,000 to Rhubarb Theatre to 

contribute towards the 
development of an arts based 
resource pack about the 
environment 

£1,000 to Kuk Sool Won to 

contribute towards the cost of 
renting their unit to ensure 
continued viability when lockdown 
restrictions are lifted  

£1,000 to Lincolnshire Community 
& Voluntary Service – English 
Language Co-ordination Project to 
contribute towards the cost of 
providing a single point of access 
website. 

£1,000 to Geoff Moulder Swimming 
Academy to enable them to buy 
new signage, promote the scheme, 
produce translated information 
packs and purchase new 
technology to aid planning and 
recording lessons and tracking 
progress  

£1,000 to Boston Parkrun to 
contribute to set up costs to run 
Junior Park Run Scheme in Central 
Park  

£1,000 to Boston Hakusan City 
20/21 Exchange Programme to 
contribute towards the souvenirs, 
trips and activities held during the 
Japanese students’ stay.  

£1,000 to Fydell House to fund the 
purchase of patio tables and chairs 
for the garden to increase their 
visitor offer.  

£1,000 to St John’s Ambulance to 
contribute towards a larger project 
funding the training of 9 volunteers 
to their cadet programme in the 
Fenside Ward of Boston. 
 

P
age 49



 
 

£500 to Wyberton Football Club to 

contribute towards the purchase of 
a mower to keep the maintenance 
of their grounds in-house.  

£1,000 to Boston in Bloom 

Partnership to contribute towards 
the cost of commissioning a film by 
Electric Egg enabling the entry into 
both the regional and national 
Bloom competitions in 2021.  

£1,000 to the We’ll Meet Again 

Museum towards the delivery of 
their fully immersive education 
programme to schools within the 
BTAC area  

£1,000 to Blackfriars Theatre 
Academy to fund organising and 
performing a socially distanced 
pantomime  

£680 to the Parish of Boston – 
Boston Foodbank to purchase 
storage equipment for the food 
bank currently housed at Belkin 
Memorial Hall. 

£1,000 to Skirbeck St Nicholas 
Community Centre towards the 
cost of further refurbishment to the 
Ladies’ toilet and provision of a wet 
room 

£1,000 to Headway Lincolnshire as 
part of their Covid-19 recovery after 
being unable to fundraise during 
2020. 

£1,000 to Singing for Fun to 

contribute towards the running of 
the group 

£1,000 to The Local Community 
Centre to purchase and install a 
new hot water system to this new 
and developing centre. 

 
The Committee refused one application.  

The Parish of Boston requested a grant to contribute towards staff costs to run their 

community breakfast club out of St Botolph’s and St Christopher’s Churches; the grant 

was not funded as BTAC cannot support staffing costs.  

 

 

P
age 50



 
 

 

7. Review of the Year 2020/21 
 

In March 2020, the Prime Minister announced a national lockdown due to the Covid-19 

pandemic.   

This meant that BTAC, along with other Committees, could not meet in person to discuss 

items and make decisions.  Throughout the year, the Committee has made every effort 

to keep up with items, through virtual and socially-distanced meetings. 

With BTAC’s Events programme put on hold it meant that events such as the Christmas 

market had to be cancelled and rearranged for later on in the year or pushed back to 

another year.  

Members also agreed to suspend the Small Grants Scheme with a period of promotion 

for applications to be submitted in January 2021. 

 

 

 

P
age 51



 
 

8. Main Items of Business 
  

Members kept a watching brief on BTAC’s FINANCIAL POSITION, with up to date 

information provided by the Accountancy Team. 

In September 2020, the Chairman was delighted to announce Cabinet’s decision to 

remove the requirement for the Committee to seek Cabinet approval of expenditure over 

£10,000, which gave the Committee a much greater sense of independence from the 

Council. 

The Committee held a Budget Workshop and, on 3rd February 2021, Members discussed 

the DRAFT BTAC REVENUE BUDGET REPORT – ESTIMATES 2021/22 – 2025/26 

and then made a recommendation to Cabinet and Full Council on the level of precept for 

BTAC residents for 2021/22.  

At the same meeting, members also raised issues relating to the charges and opening 

hours of the public conveniences at Central Park and asked for a detailed report on these. 

Usually, BTAC Members go on an ANNUAL TOUR OF BTAC’S ASSETS AND PUBLIC 
OPEN SPACES.  Due to Covid-19 restrictions, a tour was unable to take place; instead, 

the Operations Manager presented a report to the Committee to update them on 
improvements made to BTAC Open Spaces.  

P
age 52



 
 

 
 
The Committee decided to approve funding for the following improvements: 
  

 £14,947 for open spaces security fencing improvements 
  

 £16,000 for new outdoor gym equipment for Central Park 
 

   £3,000 to create a Community Orchard 
 

   £4,935 for the installation of a public realm CCTV camera at Woodville Road     
  open space.  

 
BTAC noted the outcome of the 2020 Events Programme and then considered the 
EVENTS PROGRAMME FOR 2020/21 AND 2021/2. The Committee decided to 

reallocate existing budget to the Christmas 2020 event, increasing the budget from 
£14,500 to £22,000, to enable a 4-day Christmas Event.  
 
The Committee also decided to reallocate £13,500 of existing budget to an Illuminate 
Fire Garden for the event and £5,500 to a Letters to Santa projection. The Committee 

then agreed an increase in budget of £22,000. 
 
 

P
age 53



 
 

At a meeting held on 23rd March 2021, the Committee considered a REVIEW OF 2021/22 
EVENTS DUE TO COVID-19, which set out options for expenditure. The Committee 

chose the option that aimed to keep all the free community events, which people had 
enjoyed previously, and also added some new events to encourage footfall and benefit 
the recovery of the town.   
The Committee received a presentation to update Members on the TOWNS FUND.  The 

allocated accelerated grant funding of £750,000 was to be delivered through the 
mechanism of the Towns Fund to support the delivery of capital projects in the financial 
year 2020/21 that met the Towns Fund Intervention Framework and would have the 
greatest immediate impact on Boston to aid economic recovery. 
 
Members considered an issue that they had discussed informally for some time: the 
possibility of SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL. Members had mixed views on this matter 

and so invited representatives from the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) 
and the Local Association of Local Councils (LALC) to advise them.  Representatives 
attended a subsequent meeting of the Committee and set out all the issues and 
implications involved and answered a range of questions from Members.   
At the end of discussions, the Committee agreed to ask the Council to trigger a 
community governance review (CGR) in order to find out the public’s views and wishes 
on the matter. 
 

P
age 54



 
 

Representatives from Haven High Academy were invited to present their case for 

applying to Lincolnshire County Council to have Marian Road, Boston designated as a 

“SCHOOL STREET”.  If successful, a temporary restriction on motorised traffic would 

apply to the road at school drop-off and pick-up times. The restriction applied to school 

traffic and through traffic (not residents or emergency vehicles) and the result would be 

a safer, healthier and more pleasant environment for everyone. 

The majority of Members felt strongly that the designation would make the street much 

safer for the schoolchildren attending the academy, though a minority of Members did 

not agree.  All Members praised the input of the children from the academy.   

It was agreed that the Chairman would write to the County Council to convey the 

Committee’s strong support for the application to designate Marian Road, Boston as a 

“School Street”, with the letter to reflect all Members’ views expressed at the meeting. 

The Committee received a report on the delivery of a significant HEALTH AND 

WELLBEING PROGRAMME (EMPOWERING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES), funded by 

the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Community 

Champions Programme.  As part of the programme £20,000 grant funding had been 

allocated to BTAC for Members to allocate to meet local need.  Members agreed to add 

the grant funding to the existing BTAC small grants scheme to support residents 

in the BTAC area. 

P
age 55



 
 

The Committee received a report on options for IMPROVED SECURITY FOR CENTRAL 

PARK ARISING FROM THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE REGULATING AND 

SAFEGUARDING BOSTON’S ECONOMY TASK AND FINISH GROUP.  Members had 

previously agreed to accept the recommendations relating to locking of the park gates 

overnight and the funding of a service for Central Park to address on-going anti-social 

behaviour.  Officers produced an options report including costings for the Committee’s 

consideration and Members also heard the views of the Boston Sector Police Inspector 

from Lincolnshire Police, who had been consulted on the matter.   

Following thorough debate, it was agreed that security personnel should be employed 

with the appropriate competency and training to open and lock the gates of Central Park 

on a daily basis for a one-year period.  The Assistant Director Regulation was delegated 

authority, in consultation with the Chairman of BTAC, Leader Portfolio Holder and Section 

151 Officer, to implement this, with Members to be consulted on the details.  Also, that 

the Assistant Director Regulation was asked to undertake an immediate recruitment 

process to acquire one CCTV operator, to be focused on the BTAC area.  

Members also reviewed the Committee’s WORK PROGRAMME at each meeting, adding 

new items as well as ensuring that those items that needed regular attention were 

scheduled in for future meetings. 

 

P
age 56



 
 

The Committee deals with URGENT matters when necessary. 
 

The WOODVILLE ROAD ILLEGAL ENCAMPMENT – JULY/AUGUST 2020 was 

considered urgent as the Council had received multiple complaints from residents within 
the BTAC area following the illegal encampment on the recreation ground there. 
Members heard details of the steps taken by community safety staff to deal with the 
incident and of how other staff cleared up afterwards and Members praised their efforts. 
The Committee decided to provide £19,470 to fund the protection of the recreation 
ground with a galvanised steel fence, similar to that already in place around the play 
area.  
 

Members felt they needed to discuss the perceived lack of police response to the incident 
and agreed to arrange an EXTRAORDINARY MEETING with invited representatives of 
LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE, THE POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER AND THE MP 
FOR BOSTON & SKEGNESS. 
  

The meeting gave Members the opportunity to voice their concerns about the illegal 
encampment and to hear the Police & Crime Commissioner explain what action 
Lincolnshire Police had taken and how the Council could help them prevent it happening 
again in the future.  An all-Member Briefing was subsequently held to discuss a joint 
protocol for dealing with illegal encampments, which representatives from Lincolnshire 
Police also attended. 

P
age 57



 
 

The Central Park saw a huge facelift during the 2020-21 period. With a new Skate Park, 
Multi Use Games Area and new Garden Project. BTAC contributed £37,000 towards the 
cost of this. The Multi Use Games Area provided residents with an enclosed place to play 
basketball, netball, football and other sports.  
 

The Garden Project, which is set to be completed in June 2021; is being built following 
receipt of £23,000 in grant funding through Boston Big Local, the Royal Voluntary Service 
and Community Migration Fund.  A community based project, the Spiral Garden is being 
built in collaboration with the Arts Council funded Creative People & Places Programme, 
Transported Arts.  The garden surrounds an artwork comprising of a repurposed and 
reimagined Wash Navigation Buoy entitled ‘By Land’, representing half of the Boston’s 
motto ‘By Sea and by Land’.  A corresponding ‘By Sea’ Buoy is located by the St 
Botolph’s Footbridge and they form part of the Boston Buoys Arts Trail celebrating 
Boston’s rich heritage and maritime 

  

9. Public Engagement 
  

At every meeting, BTAC has an item for members of the public to ask questions or raise 

issues of concern.  However, this was suspended due to the pandemic, though a higher 

than usual number of people watched the meetings streamed via YouTube in the comfort 

of their home. 

P
age 58



 

Internal Audit Draft Report 

Boston Town Area Committee 

Governance Review 

 Date: September 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 59

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&url=https://www.sportstructures.com/our-clients/local-authorities/boston-borough-council/boston-borough-council-boston-community-sports-strategy/&psig=AOvVaw2uEy-ZpxeIf8nUOpMOWSII&ust=1625149728255000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAcQjRxqFwoTCNiJk9bIv_ECFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE


  

 

 

 

 

P
age 60



              Contents 

 

 
 

The contacts at Assurance Lincolnshire with this review are: 

Lucy Pledge CMIIA, QIAL 

Audit and Risk Manager (Head of Internal Audit) 

Lucy.Pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Matt Waller 

Team Leader 

Matt.Waller@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Jayne Worrall (Julia Raftery Consulting Ltd) 

Principal Auditor 

J.Worrall@raftery.biz 

 

 
Background and Scope                                                                                              

Page 
1 

  
Executive Summary  

Assurance Opinion and Key Messages                                                                                            
 

3 
 

Management Response                                                                                              7 
  
Advisory Points 8 
  
  
Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions 9 
Appendix 2 – Distribution List 11 
  
 
 
 
 

 

 

P
age 61

mailto:Lucy.Pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Matt.Waller@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 Background and Scope 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

Background and Context 

Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) gives local people a 

means to influence Council decision making, share opinions 

and contribute to positive changes in their neighbourhood.  

Comprising of all elected Members representing the town 

wards of Boston, its role is to : 

 Exercise and perform the powers and duties of the 

council in respect of the non-parished Boston town area 

of the borough for those services and functions 

delegated to it. 

 Take responsibility for the town’s Special Area Expense 

Account (SAEA). 

 Reflect and represent the views of town wards and 

residents. 

BTAC provides and maintains parks, open spaces, play areas, 

town events, public toilets and other facilities and services 

mainly intended for the use and benefit of its residents and 

monitors and reviews the performance of services within its 

responsibility. 

It works with residents, businesses and community groups 

supporting initiatives that have a direct benefit and positive 

impact on their area and communities, awarding Community 

Grants to town-based organisations and events. 

It acts as a consultee on major initiatives, projects and 

development affecting the town area and considers 

applications for planning permission and other consents and 

related matters. 

Scope 

This review has sought to provide assurance over the 

effectivenss of BTAC’s governance arrangements and 

operations to ensure that they are fit for purpose. 

We reviewed the Committee’s processes and included the 

following areas: 

 Governance arrangements for effective oversight, 

reporting and decision making (including roles and 

responsibilities) 

 Compliance with policies and procedures, including the 

Council’s Constitution and delegated authority 

 Financial oversight and reporting arrangements 

 Adequacy of decision making and approval processes. 

P
age 62



 Background and Scope 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

We met with the Assitant Director, Support Services and 

Partnership, the Chairman of BTAC, and other key officers at 

Boston Borough Council (BBC) and PSPS Ltd to obtain an 

understanding of the governance arrangements, accountability 

of finances and administration of the Small Grant Funding 

Scheme. Supporting documentation/reports were reviewed and 

procedures examined to determine the effectiveness of the 

arrangements. 

The review has not covered the formation of a Town Council 

as a separate request for a Community Governance review 

has been put forward for approval by full council. 

 

   

 

 

P
age 63



  Executive Summary 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

High 
Assurance 

Risk 
Rating 

(R-A-G) 

Recommendations 

High Medium 

Risk 1 – Governance arrangements are not fit for 
purpose, including those for managing the governance 
structure and meetings. 

Green 0 0 

Risk 2 – There are ineffective processes in place to 
ensure that the provision of services by  BTAC 
complies with its terms of reference and delegated 
authority. 

Green 0 0 

Risk 3 – Financial controls are ineffective to ensure 
that BTAC operates within the allocated budget for the 
town area. 

Green 0 0 

  Risk 4 – There is a lack of clarity and transparency in 
decisions made; decisions are made beyond its 
powers. 

Green 0 0 

 

Key Messages 

 
 
 
 

Overall we can provide a high level of assurance around the effectiveness of BTAC’s governance 
arrangements and operations, confirming that they are firmly established, documented, and fit for 
purpose. 
 
Detailed Terms of Reference exist, that confirm the role and duties of BTAC. Delegated powers are 
clearly outlined and allow the Committee to achieve its aims appropriately and transparently. 
 
Duly elected committee members have the right skills, knowledge, and experience to effectively carry out 
their roles and responsibilities.  Comprehensive induction packs are provided to new members and 
training in specific areas offered to existing members, if required. Members adhere to the Council’s 
Member Code of Conduct, with all completing the required Disclosable Pecuniary and Local Choice 
Interest Forms.   

P
age 64



  Executive Summary 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Messages 

 

   
Whilst the Covid 19 pandemic impacted on BTAC’s ability to hold meetings at the beginning of the year, 
regular meetings have been held since August 20, that were well attended by members and relevant 
officers from the Council.  When required, sub-committees/working groups have been established with 
formally agreed objectives and clear reporting lines. 
 
BTAC meeting agendas are clear and concise and contain sufficient information to enable the public to 
fully understand what matters are being considered.  There are opportunities for members of the public 
to raise questions/concerns at meetings, with agendas, minutes and supporting papers all available on 
the Council website for the public to view. 
 
Meeting minutes clearly reflect discussions held and reasons for decisions. Actual or potential conflicts of 
interest are disclosed at the beginning of meetings with evidence of members, where relevant, 
withdrawing from the decision-making process.   
 
The Committee is kept fully informed of small grant funding applications, work of the BTAC Operatives, 
events programmes etc.   A detailed ‘Work Programme’ ensures matters requiring regular consideration 
are discussed and new items are scheduled for future meetings.   
 
Review of minutes and supporting reports confirm BTAC is working within its Terms of Reference and 
delegated powers, with issues of significance reported to Cabinet for formal approval, when required. 
 
Responsibilities for financial management and reporting of the SAEA are clearly defined, with regular 
reconciliation and detailed monitoring undertaken.  Approval of the BTAC annual budgets and precept is 
evident, with detailed work papers clearly outlining funding arrangements and budget/precept 
requirements over a 5-year period.  Budget estimates appear reasonable, and the level of reserves held 
acceptable.   
 

P
age 65



  Executive Summary 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

The financial position of the SAEA, together with reports outlining the financial impact of any decisions 
made re specific BTAC activities, are regularly reported to Committee, enabling fully informed decisions 
on spending to be made. 
 
Small Grant Funding applications are correctly completed, appropriately considered, and approved and 
fully meet the terms and conditions of the grant and the expectations of BTAC.  Decisions taken by the 
Small Grants Working Group, endorsed by BTAC, are clearly documented and fully transparent. 
 
Comprehensive annual reports outlining the work of BTAC are produced, it is acknowledged that the 
20/21 report is currently being prepared.   
 
We have made three advisory points which management may wish to consider relating to 
Pecuniary/Local Choice Interest Forms and the location/submission of the Annual report.   
 
We would like to thank the staff who provided their time and assistance to support the completion of the 
audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 66



  Executive Summary 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

Managing your 
risks 

 

Good risk management, including maintaining risk registers, helps you to identify, understand and 
reduce the chance of risks having a negative impact on achievement of your objectives. 

 
During our audit work we did not identify any additional significant or high risks that we feel should 
be considered for inclusion on your service Operational Risk Register.    

P
age 67



   Management Response 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

Management 
Response 

 
 

The outcome of this audit with its high level of assurance given for the effectiveness of BTAC’s 
governance arrangements and operations is welcomed.  It is also pleasing that the audit did not identify 
any additional significant or high risks requiring action and the advisory points raised to help further 
improve performance, will be considered as a priority. 
 
I would like to thank Assurance Lincolnshire for the support we have received throughout this 
governance review. 

 

Assistant Director – Support Services & Partnerships 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 68



   Advisory Points – Adding Value through Efficiencies 

 

8 | P a g e  
 

The following items are advisory recommendations / comments arising from the audit, which management may wish to consider 

implementing to improve efficiency of the system or performance. 

Ref Finding Advice 

AP1 

Review of Disclosable Pecuniary and Local Choice Interest 
Forms identified a few minor instances of forms not fully 
completed i.e. individual answer boxes left blank, rather 
than stating ‘none’ or declaring an interest. 
 

To ensure Disclosable Pecuniary and Local Choice Interest 
Forms are fully completed i.e. no boxes left blank, thereby 
providing assurance that all questions have been fully 
considered. 
 

AP2 

There is no clear link on the Boston B.C website to easily 
locate and view BTAC Annual Reports.  
 
Reports are currently held within the relevant meeting 
minutes. 
 

A clear link/pathway be created on the Boston B.C website 
to enable members/residents to easily access Annual 
Reports. 

AP3 

There is no formal requirement for the BTAC Annual 
Report to be submitted to Cabinet. 
 
 

Consideration be given to providing Cabinet with a copy of 
the BTAC Annual Report for information purposes to 
ensure that they are kept fully informed of the work and 
achievements of BTAC. 
 

P
age 69



           Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions 

 

9 | P a g e  
 

High Substantial 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the 
activity gives us a high level of 
confidence on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, 
and the operation of controls and / or 
performance. 
 

 

 
Our critical review or assessment on 
the activity gives us a substantial 
level of confidence (assurance) on 
service delivery arrangements, 
management of risks, and operation 
of controls and / or performance. 
 

 

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 
operating effectively. 
 

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 
to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 
adequate, appropriate, and operating sufficiently so that the risk of 
the activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.   
 

Limited Low 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the 
activity gives us a limited level of 
confidence on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or 
performance. 

 

 
Our critical review or assessment on 
the activity identified significant 
concerns on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or 
performance. 
 

 

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 
operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 
unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 
risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 
achieve its objectives. 
 

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 
risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 
appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore, the risk 
of the activity not achieving its objectives is high. 
 

P
age 70



           Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions 

 

10 | P a g e  
 

 

 

                  

Action Priority 

High  

Immediate management attention is required - an internal control or 
risk issue where there is a high certainty of:  substantial loss / non-
compliance with corporate strategies, policies or values / serious 
reputational damage / adverse regulatory impact and / or material 
fines (action taken usually within 3 months). 
 

Medium 

Timely management action is warranted - an internal control or risk 
issue that could lead to financial loss / reputational damage / 
adverse regulatory impact, public sanction and / or immaterial fines 
(action taken usually within 6 to 12 months). 
 

P
age 71



           Appendix 2 – Distribution List 

 

11 | P a g e  
 

 

Distribution List   

Boston B.C 

Phil Perry – Assistant Director, Support Services &             

Partnerships 

Adrian Sibley – Section 151 Officer 

Alison Penn – Deputy Chief Executive (People) 

James Gilbert – Interim Deputy Chief Executive (People) 

 

BTAC 

Cllr. Paul Goodale (Chairman) 

 

PSPSL 

Tim Sampson – Strategic Finance Manager 

 

External Audit 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 72



           Appendix 2 – Distribution List 

 

12 | P a g e  
 

 

Disclaimer 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to 

our attention during our internal audit work.  Our quality 

assurance processes ensure that our work is conducted in 

conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards and that the information contained in this report is 

as accurate as possible – we do not provide absolute 

assurance that material errors, fraud or loss do not exist.   

This report has been prepared solely for the use of 

Management of Boston Borough Council.  Details may be 

made available to specified external organisations, including 

external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be used 

or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  No 

responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has 

not been prepared and is not intended for any other purpose. 

 

 

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REVIEW
	Appendix A  Report and Minute Corporate and Community Committee 17 August 2021
	Appendix B  Cabinet Minutes 17 August 2021

	2 CENTRAL PARK SECURITY MEASURES UPDATE
	3 BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME AND BTAC EMPOWERING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES GRANT SCHEME
	4 WORK PROGRAMME - including ANNUAL REPORT
	Annual Report
	Audit Report


